. This ¢laim first came before me In July i95?
on a demurrer pleaded at the instance of the Adminis-
tration then the. sole defendant, Thera had besn in-

sufficient compliance with the demurrer rules and with
the concurrence of counsel I procecded to treat the
matter -ag s pleading summons and held fthat several
paragrephs of the Statement of Claim could not stund.
The Plaintiff elected to discontinue the action and take
time to consider his p051£10n with a view to commencing
a. fresh action.

’ The present action was commenced on 8th Fovember
1957 end again the Administration was the sole defendant.
The claims made were similar in substance to those in the
gartier action but the Statement of Claiin had been revigsed
to avoid the objections previously encountered, Again
. the Defendant demurred but, urder the xules, also tra-
versed the facts relled upon by the Plalntlff The -
demurrer ceme before me in April 1958, I held that the
claim based on s -cause of action in tort cpuld not stand
"t that the contract rélied on by the plaintiff, if
proved, was hot unsupported by consideration. I gave -
Leave to cmend the Statement of Clalmo '

: ﬁpon the hearzng of these demurrer proceedlngs

I gained the impression that it would have heen more
appropriate to hear the evidence first and thls impression
wog confirmed on the trial of the .action.

The Statement of Claim was amended and the
amended Defence was delivered just before the trial., The
amendments raised for the Tirst time the plea that the
officers who entered into the relevant transaction with
the Plaintiff had no authority to contract on behalf of
the Administration. This not unnaturally took My, Jongs
who sppeared for the Plaintiff by surprise, but since he
had travelled from Rabaul and had brought his client and
wiltnesses fyom far afield for the trial he preferred to
proceed with the hearing., He somewhat hasgtily applied
to join the three officers concerned as co-defendants upon
a ¢laim for breach of warranty of asuthority and hoped for
the best, Arrangements were made for immediate reptes-
entation of these three officers so that the trial could .

. proceed, and I made an order abridging times, 4 defence
was delivered on behalf of the three new défendants and
a reply was subsequently delivered during the trial.

In their defence the three added defendants
pleaded that the transaction was not supported by consid-
eration bubt that if it-constituted a binding 4transaction
then the three officers who made it were duly authorized
t0 do so and the con¥ract was binding on the Administration.
A curious result of the joinder of defendants was that -
although the Administration was bound by my earlier dster-
mination that thé contract was not lackihg iv consideration,
the other defendants were not, znd so Mr, Meloughlin for
these defendants took over thls point as his main srgument,
and abandoned the quegtion of authority raised ln paragraph
6 of hisrdefence. 1 He went mo far as to, say. that his olients
Inow that they could not make a contract: and that 1t would
be ceuge. for very sgeriocus criticism. of them a8 senior and
responaxbla officers if they hdd made.the érvor of purportlng
td maka 2 contract blnding on the Admlnlstrailon,,

i ; .t “I" - . O
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_ Of course coungel ig free fo put any-argument
onn behalf of his client that he may think fit, and it is
his responsibhility to shaps his course. Moreover '
officers may for reasons of expediénce prefer to rely
on some proposition which may damage their case; but in
my view there is no justification for any suggestion that
merely because an officer makes some arrangement which
imposes obligations to teke reasonable care upon the
Administration, the. officers have necessarily failed in
their duty.’ There are matiers of great substance fto be
¢ongidered before arriving at any such conclusion and such
o suggestion ds unjust. ‘ .

- I think it is convenient to deal first with two
points which can be disposed of shortly, First, I have
heard nothing which lcads me to the conclusion that the
gquestion of conalderatlon which I decided on the demurrcr
proceedings was wrongly decided and I therefore adopt the
same conclusion on this point. Second, the evidence
makes it clear that the three officers who were joined as
defendants, at all times acted as members of the Public
Service, gave no express personal undertaking or warranty, :
and were alt all times understood by the Plaintiff as acting
. in their official capacity only,  .Under these clrcumstances
they can be under no personal liability to the Plainiiff
either on express or implied contract or warranty. Dun v
MeDonald 1897 1 Q.B., 555 is sufficient to dispose of the

ciaim against the three officers,

I now proceed to examine the first main question;
It is clear that a transaction resembling a contract was
entered into, The ‘question is vhat was that transaction.

Since intention ig going to be important it is
necesgary to consider the history of the whole matter on both
aides. Both sides had had their difficultles and by the

cbime the transpetion of Tth June 1954 was entsred into a
good deal had happened which might indicate the intention
. of the parties, j L S

: During the hearing Mr, Dwyer was asked (without
objection) whether he intended to enter into a legally
binding contract, and he answered in the negative without
any spegific rcasons which would assist me,. 1 think it
would be plainly wrong to attach weight %o this evidence on
5 disputed dsgsue. T mish consider what inference is .
- proper from what the parties sald and &id at the time, and

consider what each party might hdve faken to be the intention-

of the other at that tinme.

: Mr, Leahy had been a well-known mining piloneer

in the Territory of New Guinea for many years, After many
yvears prospecting and mining he setitled down to pastoral
pursuits, His disposition is forceful in some respects
and his early cxperience and his temperament have produced
a forthright approach to business coupled with a marked’
tendency to expréss himself plainly and in gtrong terms,
‘He caused a good deal of rescniment amongs? Administration
officers at various times as the correspondence shows; but
on ‘the whole maintained a cordial relationship with them,

. Although the Plaintiff ié given %0 overstatement
to gome extent I am satisfled that his expbriences prior to
1954 justified his expressed abtitudé, if not some of his

remarks, ool ' oL

. ~ In 1947ihe conmenged importing cattle from New
. South Wales. ° His lond ab; Zensg wag tlck-free and the
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-Adminisgtration insisted, very properly, that ?11 his cattle
be imperted from iick free aveas, although this added much
to the cost of the cattle, In 1948 Ifrs, Booth, anothor
well-known pioncer of the goldficlds in New Guinea, asked
the Plaintiff's permiession to send some of her cattle to,
Zoenag for service, My, Leabhy apparently knoew that her
cattle were tick infegted and sinoe he.wag about to lLeave
_for Sydney for-o holiday, discussed the matter with fr,
Grainger, an officer of the Depurtnent of Agriculiure,
Jtock and Fisheries in Port Morcsby, and asked him to iull
Mrs, Booth that she must not send her cattle to Zenog.
The Plaintiff's evidence was not entirely in agreencnt with
“the correspondence on this point but i%. remains uncontia-
dicgted in substance. What T think most probably cceurrcd
is that zlthough IMr, Leahy 4id not purport to have a great.
knowledge of cattle, he knew very well from his expericnee
when importing cattle thot the Administration viewed ticks
veéry seriously, and he lmew “the risks invelved in bringing
Mrs. Booth's cattle on to hisg property. I think however
that Mr. Leahy found it hard to refusc what was probably a
- confident request of Mrs, Booth, in view of .their long .
afgsociation, and especially since therc was no alternative
readily open to Mrs. Booth, I think that the Plaintiff
gave o somewhat reinctant consent and then tried to.get
Mr. Grainger to veto the proposal,

The Plaintiff said Iin cross-exanination that the
expected btelegroam was never gsent and this assertion which
had previously been made in the correspondence was never
contradicted, Whilst Mr. Leahy.was in Sydney Mra. Booth's
cattle were sent to his property with the result that it
became infested with cattle ticks, which persisted until
after the matters in dispute had occurred, No cloin was
made in the action in respect of the invasion of ticks,
but the Plaintiff's attitude since then has been thot the

Administration brought. them there and should get rid of
- them, At the some time I think that the Plaintiff -
realized that he had allowed himself to get into & fLalso
position over the whole maticr and wos propared to be co- |
operatlve with the Administration, At this tiwme the Admin-
istration did not have adeguate equipment or trzined
.officers t0 eradicoate the ticks butbt provided free of c¢harge
to.the Plointiff supplies of tickicldes and hand opercted
spray equipment to enable him to spray his own catile, The
Administration also gave the "Plaintiff some instruction in
proper Ireatuont -methods. In- the circumstances Mr., Leahy
- preferred to conduct his own compaign for the eradication .
of "ticks aspisted by tho AdMLnlatratlon to the oxtent which
I have indicated. .

- The campaign wos conducted by Mr,. Leahy end hig
employesa from 1948-1954 but without success, During this
period he managed to Becep the tick population down to a low
“level so that generally hig cattle were nover henvily
infested Lut he never managed to eradicate them completely,
© The many caused for this failure wmay be tabulated as follows:

(1) Mr. Lechy was not an cxpert cattle man nor did hé
hove the patience or Thoroughness necessary to nake
a succegs of the operation,

(2} " Considerable numbers of his cattle were Herefords
- which bore comparatively long coats of dense woolly
-hair affording . ticks effective protéetion from the
spray end moking theilr proscnce in small numbe:s
“difficult %o notlce.
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The hand operated spray equipnent wos 1padcquatc
for the purnose. Instructions indicated that
about two and one half gallons of spray per heast
cwera -required to cnsure adequate drenching of the
hide end this requiremont muut have made it a very
Ctedious twsk, ' _ -

Mr., Leahy's property was os ye% in an uwndeveloped
gtate, It wes rough country affording plenty of
cover for cattle and without a propcrly organived
gystem 1% was virtually impossible ito cnsure
complete musterings fovr syraying, :

My, Leahy's property lacked facilities for efficient
yarding and handling of his cattle,

In the early stoges Mr, Loahy.w¢g boglnnlng to huild

up his herd of cattle but was unmable o import them.

in unlimited numbers and had to spend the substantinl
part of his time growing and dealing in cash-crops

in order to produce income.

o For same time Mr, Leohy did +the sproying hlmaclf but
found that his health was being adversely affected by the
<considerable quantities-of tickicide spray which he inhaled”
in the process., Thercafter he passed over this tosk fo his
employees who apparently did not relish it any more than he
did. At o later stege the Administration provided a power

ﬁgfopcratcd spray, that is, a punp driven by o small enging bo
(voprovide the pregsure to drive the fluid through o hose

ff*fitted with a.director and nozzles so that the jet of spray
oecould be divected on to thoe animals by hand whilst they were

thdﬂ:m.acmmh*mn. This cquipment operated at o high
“presgsure and promised much better resulis e“p001a11y on the
~long=halred Heroford cattle-but Thu cwnpalgn wag still only

jf,partly successful.

i On the 9Lh November 1953 the Plaintiff wrote to
. the Director of the Department of Agriculture, Stock and

- TFigheriés (Bxhibit A 1) and in his Ietter the Flaintiff
voocomplains of the heavy cost to him in terms of European ' -
“and native labour of the spray treatment which he regarded as
v incapable of getling rid of the ticks. He refers to o
previocus offer of the Department and asks it to send on. of

its men along to look at the situntion, devise effoetive meons
~of dealing with the ticks and relieve the Plointiff of tha

© task, In itg reply dated 20th November 1953 (Exhibit 4 2)
- ~the Department expresses its regrct that it has no stock
dnspector available to supervise the spraying but exprosses

" the expectation thet one would be aveilable sarly in the

ﬁfvnew yenr, Reference is made by the Department to the
codesirability of using a dip instead of the spray technique.

o+ One pearagreph in the letfer states "We will do everything

©in our power to undertake the cle1n31ng of your stock os
gquickly as possible, and if this ig not sueccessful we will

© do all wo cen to undertake the supervision of the eradication

- in the peay future", The reference to “cleansing™ relatoes
Yo the removal of tlek from individual ¢attlc so that thoy

2 ;m1ghﬁ be certified by the Department as fit to be moved 0

;'chean land at Bailune where the Plalnﬁlff W1Shed to take some

ﬁ'fof his cattle,

‘ On the lst Deoembor 1953 quintlff wrote again to
'the Department (Exhibit 4 3) 46 the effect that he could find
& man wllling to suporv;ae tho -spraying of tho stock according
10 the Department's instructions snd suggestoed bthat the .cost
of this supervision and of labour, trangport and othewr
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expenses ghould be borne: by the Dcpﬁrtmcnt.- The Plaintiff
cxpregsed himself as strong]y in fovour of the usce of-a dip
instead of the spray opperatus, In its roply- “doted 22nd
December 1953 (Exhibit A 4) the Department declines to
enploy a supervisor as suggested by the Plaintiff, - The
two weasons given arc Tirat “That there are various :
administrative circumstances vhich mitigate {(sic) prgoinst
our being able to do this" which may be freely tranglabed
ns "We coonot be responsible for a part tinme eniployec who :
ig not working undexr. our ¢ffective supcrvision and is not |
employed. according to depe rimental reguloticns" and sccond .
MThat the. supervision requires certain technical skills M
The Department outlines all that. it hos done and is prepared
to continue to do for the Plaintiff, coxpreases rogret fhat
it cannot do morc at fthe moment and ropeats its ossurance
that "An officer of this Department will be mede svailoble -
t0 supervise the eradication of tick on your property. os
soon as one becomes avellable.® This letter and, I think
in -particular the reference to whet. the Department was doing.
for Mr. Leahy brought forth some characteristie retorts .-
from Mr., lLeohy which he expressed in o letter of the ljth
- Jamuary 1954 (Fxhlblt A5} I tHink that this letter
accurately sets oul Mr. Leahy's attitude at thet time, Fitas
o result of Mr, Leshy's forthright statements and possibly
ag a result of some alleviation in the staff shortoge of
Fthe Depaxtment the.decision was taken:to send Mr., Melaren
ags stock inspector to the ‘Morobe District where his activities
were to be confined to Wau and Zenag., ~ This docision is
communicated to My. Iweohy in the Department's letter of the:
18th March 1954 (Exhibit A 6), . It should be noted in passing
that Wou was the aren frastich Mra, Booth's cattle had come ;
and which was known to have been infested with cattle ticks
for many: years, In his letter of 4th April 1954 (Exhibvit 1
A T) Mr, Leahy accepts the Department g deecision and regords
this as the fulfillment of a promise-rnde by the Depﬂrtmont
~some years beforoe, He looks forward to.- "handing over to
Mr, McLaren in the near future". On the 8th Moy the
Department writes again (Exhibit. A 8) rofcrrlng to a slight
delay in Mr, Mclaren's plans,

- Mr., Mclaren commenced his duties some time in May

- 1954 and took charge of the spraying operations on the
pleintiff's propexrty. Tor thig purpose he was using tho

- plaintiff's labour Yo handle the spray egquipnent and perform
incidental duties around the cattle yards and he also had

the aglatance of the Plaintiff's European dalryman and

native gtockmen for the purpose of mustering, By this stage
Mr. Leahy had obtainod from the Department nearly all that:
he had asked for or demanded bub there still remalned the
vital question of the cost of labour which would be involved
1f the departmental requirements for o therough chmpaign
against ticks wore to be fully observed. - Accordingly Hr.
Leshy ceme down to Port Moresby and interviewcd the Dircetor

of the Department of Agriculture, Stock and PlShLlleS, Mr,

R.E. P, Dwyer, who was one of the Defendents joined in the
action. Mr. Dwyer had known the Plaintiff for very many
years. “They had gquite o cordial discussion but sine Mr. :
Leahy's requirements fell within the particulor sphere of i
Mr. Marley, Chielf officexr of the Diwvision of Animal Husb 1ndry,
Mr. Marley was invited to join the conference and the main
discussion so far as material to this case took place
between Mr, Marley and the Plaintiff. Mr. Dwyer does not.
rebtain a detailed recollection of what was discussed and
there 18 zome difference in rbcollectlon botwenn Mr, Moarlay
and the Plaintiff, However there is much common ground
as to the more important parts of what was said, To '
uummarlau “the conver“atlon brlefly it amounted -to this - |
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that the Plaintiff hav¢ng outlined thﬂ finmneial burden
impesed on him by the Department's roquirements asked

the Depariment to talke over the cost of the labour inveived.
‘He pointed out that he hod carriced this biarden himscIf for
a long time without achieving succegsful rosults 2nd he
stated that he had no confidence in. the Department's pro-
gramme, - He asked for the introduction of a dip and the
nodification of the tick campnaign so that the cattle would
only need to be handled ot longer intervals than weekly nas
the Dgpartmcnt'r eradication plan reguired. Mr, Leahy
expregsed fthe view that dippivg ot longer intervals would
serve to control the tick population to keop it below a
dungsrauu level; would save a-very substontial amount of
expense in mustering and handling the cattle and would avoid
the necesgity for frequent yarﬂlng of cattle Tor long 1<rlods
of time whon they should be grazing, Thus leading to los
of“~condition since the pasturcs wore alreandy severcly ov r—
stocked and fecd was scarce, . The Department would not agrec
to these alternative proposals. The moin reascns worer-

(L) Sprays were preferrod to djpplng because of the very
high cost of charging o dip with suitable tickicides
and of keeping the dip at the required sttength.

" {2) The fact that the tickicides selected for use could
© ' not-obe welied-upon to remain effeetive after being
kept "in solution for long periods of tiwme,

{3) The use of arsenic which was the only solution which
could he relicd upon %o keep indefinitely in oan open
dip, was prohibited for . uhl“ purp0q0 for heolth
reasoms.,

(4) The control of %icks in dnttle was entirely the
regponsibility of the cattle owner and the Department
would not assist Mr, Leohy or anybody else to control
ticks, The Deporitment's policy was to achieve the
complete eradication of ticks in the Territory and it
was only when eradication was to be undertaken that
the Department would offer any assigtonce, - If the .
owner elected mercly to control the tick population
the Department would prohibit the novement of his
catlle as o meons of preventing the sprecd of ticko,
In these cirecunstonces individual beasts could only
Jbe moved when ~the Departnent was satisficd after
inspection that all the ticks had beon completcly
eliminated from thom, '

. It beeame apparcnt to Mr., Leohy thot the control

of ticks on his property would not nchicve his purpose bechune
it would meke it prautlcallv impossible for him 4o move his
cattle -to the Baiung area wheore he was anxdlous to egtablih
his beef cattle herd and-put an cnd o the severc overstocking
of his Zenag property. . In thede circumstances znd faced
with the prospect of meeting the entire cost of any different
programme that he night profer to corry out he fell in with
-the Department's views and agreed that they should carry osut
a-complete tick eradication prograrme under the supervision
of their own qualified officer. - He alsc ngreed to supply
aix native labourers to the Ldministration at o charge of

6/~ per doy to work under the direction of the Department's
officer and agreed thet he would undertake the respons 1b111ty
for mustering all -his stock ond having themn. available for’
apraying at the time indicatced by the Departsent. Tox
mastering purposes -the Ploaintiff was to provide his own
native labour and European supervision, Mr. Leahy emphasized
that he would have nothing to do with the campaign itself and
according to Mr, Marley who was called aﬂ a W1invgs hhu
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Plaintiff said "Once you pecople startd poying this notive.
labour I'1lL hand the whole lot over bo you, I am more then
gick and tired of it", Mr, Harley said thot he replicd "We
are not to be responsible for your cattle and it is guite
clearly your responeibility for the handling and mustoring
of thenm", Whon llr, Leahy said that ho did not wont any
more to do,with tick .cradication and would hand it oll over ;
to the Administration Mr. NMarley said in subghance thot the ’
“Administration would not be responsiblo for the cattle ’
gencrally = for their wellbeing ond handling.,  He @id not
however say thai the Administration would not be responsible

for the spraying of the cattle or fox the proper conduct :
of the tick eradicaiion compaign. :

Mr. Marley's evidence is the only detbailed evidence
of the conversation relicd upon by the fdministration. His
gvidence would suppcrt the conclusion thaot the subatance of
the transaction agreed upon-was thot the Administration should
take over the responsibility for payment of native labourers
wno were to work under the direction and control of o
guslificd officer. of the Deparimcent and that the Flaintiff's
respongibilities weore limited to mustering the cattle anid
having them- available when required for spraying.

e 'Sincg'ﬁﬂé'ﬁeyafﬁﬁent'Hﬁd“@lﬁbéd&'ﬁgfbédﬁto provide
a quallfmed ofificer who would undertake the supcrvision of
the spraying and had already 1mplem9nted this by sending Iy,
Melaren to carvy oubt thosc duties it mppears to meg thas thore
ig hardly any real differcnce betwcen the two versions which
I have had of the conversations. :

Considering the position of the Plaintiff it is - 5
clear thot he was assuming somc liabilitics end responsibilities
and agrecd to depart from his own proposals to the oxtent of
co~operating with the hAdministraticn to carry out its con~
palgn, I think that it is e¢lcar that the Plaintiff cxpocted
the Deportment to honour its promiscs and to sce that the '
canpaign wes carrled out propor]ya He was prepared 30 leave
-the entire conduct of the compaign t¢ the Department and in
foct he was insisting that they should toke complete charge
of it. I think that the proper econclusion is. that Uy, Lonhy
was ontering into a fransaction which ng betwoen individuals
would zmount to a contract and which wos intended to impose
obligations of a lcgal charscter on both portics. - Theru
.remains of course the question whother in relation to this
fIransaction the Adninisfration ghould Bo coneidercd og boing
upon o differcnt footing from thot of an ordin~ry individual,

Looking at the hquory and boekground of the trang-
potion from the point of view of ‘thu sdmindgtrotion to ascer—
Tain what ooy be a fodr inforence ou to ils intentiliong in

~the matter we find that at the tine when the tronscction was
entored into 1t wag the stated policy of the Aduinistration
"$o undertnke the eradication of 4icks in the Torritory",
Yr, Morley had told the.Plaintiff that this woo the policy
of the Administraition and this woas .relied upon ag the ;
Justification for the Department rofusing Lo contribute ;
towards any scheme designed mercely to control ticks, That ,
it was the policy of the Administration to widertazke the
elimination of $icks is beyond guestion hoving lcgari to the
statoments contained in the Memorandum doted dth Junc 1954
from the Dircetor of the Department of Agriculturce Stock
and Fisheries to the Government Secretary. This Memorondun .
ig Exhibit F. Tho relevanlt passage of this venorendum recites
this policy in - -the following terms:~ "Hig Honour the
Adninistrator has approved Thot the Adminishration should be !
aqponszble for tick oradicabion Jn Lhn Tozi:iorj,
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br, Legg hag scveral times pointed out that saltis-
factory results in tick. erodication will not he achieved
until such time as stock .inspectors are used for-the
eradication.”

This report was shown to His Honour the Administrator by
the Government Sceretory ond the proposals in it recelvod
the Administrator's approval.

E At the time when the discussion took place between
the Plaintiff end the officers of the Department.of Agric-— -
vlture, Stock and Fisheries, the Departmeint hod been :
agtablished in the Territory but its powers had ngt become
the subject of special legislation,

: The Animal Discases and Control Ordinance was
pasued im 1952 and assonted to on 24th January 1953 but was
" not brought into force until 11th November 18454, This
Ordinance gave statutory power +to the Stock Inspectors to
compel persons in the Territory to submit Yo various actions
and decisions of the Departmentis officers, to comply with
various orders and: dirwctions in relation to cattle and to
submit the cattlie to prescribed treatments at the owner's
expense without imposing on the Depariment or its officors
any express obligation for demages unless occasioned malic-
iously and without reasonoble or probable cause, This
Ordinance was designed lo be the ins trument for implementation
of Administration policy but until it was brought into force
the Department had to be content with exercising a more »3r
legs advisory function in relation to catile discased and of
course s¢ long as the officers of the Department kept the
confidence of the cattlc owners their advice was eagerly
aonght and the co-operction of the cattle owners was assured.

In the abschce of such statulory powers of com-
pulgion the Deportment was subglantially in the troditional
role of the Crown at Common Law. The courdts had for many
years evolved principles for the protection of citizend
against arbitrary acts of interference with private property -
subject to this, that if the Crown could prove that the
individual was using his property in such a way as 1o
endanger the public intercst or the rights of citigens in
general in the area the Crovn could nLLk an injunction or

.other appropriate remaedy o protect the public interest,

he Crown could not enter upon private lend for the purpose
of interfering in thg conduct or mancgement of the.landowner's
bosiness. In more modern times and especially during and.
since World War 1, it has becn the proctice for Parliament to
confer upon Governments expresg gtalulory power to regulate
anhd control mony kinds of business activities and to inbterfers
with established rights of property and to impose liabilities
on persons in the interests of the public and especially with
regard to matters of d&efence, heelth, cle. It is entirely
the responsibility of Parliament to decide to what extent the
public interest justifies conferring these express statutory

- powers which hove the effect of depriving the individual

01t¢zen of mach of tho protontion of the low which would other— |

wise be his. It is therefore in my view quite erroneous for
the Adminigtration in the . light of subsequent experience,
gonined during the period when it had statutory powers which

- enabled it bo carry ocubt its policy without entering into any
contractual obligalions towards the citizen in question, to
suggest that the Dircctor of theé Department of Agriculture,
Stock and Fisgheries must be taken to have intended at a time -

when there were no such statutory powers, to avold Tthe creation]

of any kind of contractual rights or obligations, . Indeed
at the time in question such on intention would have defented
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hepurpose which the Administration then had in mind,
e:Director of the Department of course ccould have

ipulated that the Depariment =nd the Administration were

e under no kind of legal obligations but if this hod
yeen -done the Plointiff himsclf would have been in o similar
osition and since he was already thoroughly dissatisficd
ith the tick eradication campolgn he could have withdrawn
om it at any ftime at will,

The transaction was clearly one whmch would affect
ghts of propexty at least 4o the extent -of creating a
cence in favour of the Administration to go upon the land.
and to treat the catile. such o licence 1€ given by viriue
f o transaction for which there ig valuable consilderation
onstitutes a contract, I . think that the officers of the
epartment clearly intended that the Flaintiff should be
ound to carry out the transaction to the end and expected
m_to honour his obligations, The transaction was in my
iiew intended to have legal consequences of the kind which
have indicated and I therefore conelude that if it were an
-rangement made between individuals it would constltute a
alid contract,

n I think that the terms of the contract may be
ummarized as Tollows: - oo :

(1) The Administration through ita quallfled OffiCeTS

; was to ecarry out a thorough tick eradication cam-
paign involving the thorough spraying of all the
cattle on the Plaintiff's property once a week under
the direct supervision of the stock inspector until
all the tickg on the property had been entirely
eliminated. It was expected that this result
would be achieved in not more than eighteen months.

The Administration was to provide the spray equlp—
ment tickicide and pay for the labour'employed in
administering the spray and in 1ncldental duties in
‘the cattle yard ~

The Plaintiff was %o prOVLde the necessary labour
for mustering and was to see that all calttle were
mistered regularly every ‘week according te details
agreod upon and was to provide water at the catile
yards for mixing with the tickieided, ‘

The Plaintiff was to construct fences and pens as
might be required from time tu bLme by the stock
ingpector, '

The Plaintiff was to have available at. the properﬁy
for the use of the stoeck inspector. six native
' labourers whosé services would be made available to
" the stock dnspector whenever requlred by hlm at the
rate of 6/~ per hour.

The Administration was.to pr0v1de whatever trans porﬁ
“the stock inspector mlght require,

T think that the obllgatlon of the Administration
n relation to the eradication of %ticks was not an absolule
bligation but was one to exercice reasonable care at a
voper level of dkl}l and compctence towards bhe cllmlnation
£ the ticks, . .

: Before concludlng that the transactlon enterod Jnto
“in thils case was a contract it is necessary t0 consider.
Im.”whether the Administration was in any way in a differcnt

% - position from ordinary 1ndiV1duals who mlghtAhave cntored
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into a similar contract. Mr., McLoughlin who ropvgagnted

the three individual defendants but who bore the main. wolght
of the argument for the Administration mihis point pressed
very strongly the view that even if the itransaction bore

the uuual characteristics of a contract 1t should be held to
cmount 0 no more -than an admlnagtrablve arrangement "not
intonded to impose on the Administration any kind of legal’
regponsibility". This argument seemed to me to be strongly .
‘colovred by wnmt T regard as the felse assumption tliat a

public servant' must never 1nvolve his Government in qny kind
of responsibilities,

I think that the as pect of this argument which
¢orrics most woight in favour of the Administration was- the
point that it would be unreasonable t6 infer that the
Administration infended to bind itself to carry out a long-
range tick eradication campaign to such an extent that it
would be legnlly compelled to deny the services of its stock
Anspector o some obther member of the public who might have
greater need for them than the Plaintiff ot any future time.
At first gigh?t this argument carries a good deal of conviction
but I think that the answer to it ig that it would be more
unreascenable to infer that tho Administration contemplatcd
that either party would be free . to abandon the campaign and
allow the Plaintiff's cattle again to become badly dinfested
with ticks after both parties had gone to much trouble- and
expensce to carry on the campaign for a considerable. period.

Both Mr, O0'Conncll for the Administration and My, .
Meloughlin cited Booker v Polmer 1642 2 All E.R, 674 ot -
1,677 Balfour v Dalfouz 10192 K,B, 571 at p, 578;  ond
Mustrolian Woodion ilis v The Commonwealith 92 C.L. R 424
At ppe 455 and 465 and 93 C Lo, 546, 7 I think that oach
sof the cases referred to was decided upon facts which were
materially different from those of the present CaBE,

Of coursc the special position of the Administration
is of wvital importance in considering the questipns of fact
irvolved, but this argument advanced on the hearing appeared
to suggest that there was some principle of the law of
contract which placced the Administration in a different poq:tlon
from that of the individual. Having cxemined the authorltlus'
:Clﬁod I*am unable to acccdc to any such view,

Aralitnal

 Bocker v Palmer 1942, 2 All E.R. 674 is & decigsion
on a very sihurial sct of fagts in which motives of charity
and generosnt" in time of ﬂ£$®¥&ﬁi distress had an imporiant
bearing upon the inferences to be drawn by the Court as.to
yhether he parties intended to enter into a legally
enforceable lranczaotion, These considerations are wholly
dinapplicable to the present case. The principle involved
in Booken v Palmer is clearly enough indicatod in the
Eq1Torial Tote al "the commencement of the report. The lagt
sentence of this note is-"At the same time it will be -
-anpracnat"d that the decision in such a case is fox Lhe most
% oone of fact and will in each case. depend upon the -
rpnrtlcu]ar facts of the case,! .

Yuch the same conglderatlon disposes of Balfour -

N Bgliour 1919 2 K.B., 571 in which a convenient domestic
‘arrangement, Yobween husbond and wife was held not to bve o
tronsaction intended Lo .involve lcgal consequences principally
- bueeuse LU appeared that the partices intoended to fieet -no more
thon the sitvation of the present, and.ought not to be taken
to have agzroed that thelr bargain should apply ragcrdlefq of
WQWU congegienees WLght ensue.,
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The case of Auatralian Woollen Mills v The
Commonwgnlth 92 C.L.R. 4%24 is in & different category. At
Tirst sight the passages referred o in argument scom to
lend some support to the view that the Court should not
regard statements issued by the Government in implementation
of Government policy as being intended to create conbractual
obligationg, However in the judgment of the Court in
that case it was pointed out with o good deal of cmpphasis
that the case -could not be understood without the closcet
attention to the detoiled clrcumstances which existed,

Having studied the facls in debtail it secms fo me that. in

that case even if it had been asssumed that there was o binding
contract 1t would have bheun extremely .difficult for the
Plaintiff 4o have egtablished what were the tormg of- that
corntract, The tronsactiong involved many vnilateral
variations on ‘the part of the Commonwealth of what was _
understoed to be its stated policy and it is covident thot

the Commonwealth from time to time did as it thought fit in
relation to the subsgidies. The High Court rejected the view
that a contract was intended and held in foct that the trane-
action involved no more than a statement by the Commonwe2lth
cof ite intention Fo make certain payments in certain specified
_events to people who fell within a particular class, Thore
was no copsideration refarablo to the pqymcnt although asg

A matter of politidal adiiinietration the Commbnwealth

regarded the scheme os beneficinl to the cconomy of the nation

as a whole, I think thal the decision in that case might -
well have been differvent if the Commonwealth had.proposed a-
gcheme whereby in return for the subsidies the manufncturcrs
of woollen goods were to surrendexr the control of- thoir
factories to the officers of the Commonwenlth for the purposc
of manufacturing some. particular class of goods which the
Commonwealth desired for seme reason to have manufactured,

I think if such had becn the facts of that case they would
have beon much cloger to the facts in the case now hafore me,
Accordingly I reject the view that the Administration ig in
any different position from that of ordinary individuanls who
might hove cnbered into the same ftransoction and hold that
the transaction entered into in this casec constituted a
conbract involving on both sides legnl obligations,

The next guestion for consideration is raiscd by
the pleg of the Administration that the officers who entered
into. the transaction had no authority %o do so. Buch an
-objection was not reised in the coursc ofthe long corrcs-
pondence betwecen the parties nor was it raised in the course
of -the legal proceedings until the cive of the trial when
paragraph 9 appeared for the first time in®he amended defence
delivered by the Administration. "hig is not wvery . fertile
ground in vhich to raise such a cdelicate plont as a denial
of authority. Hévertheless the juestion having been raised
st -be exominecd. I% is established by the evidence that
the transactlon in question was 11e result of correspondence
‘pasging between the Plaintiff and the Dircector of the
cwepartnent of Agriculture, Stock rnd Fisheries ond the con-
- Terence vhich took place between lthese genUnmen on the fth
Junec. 1954, At vhe material part of the conference Mr.*
Marley the Head of the Division o0 Animal Husbendry was also
present and he too concurred with vhat was done.  The bargain
. reached involved the expenditure o publie money for native
labour and thd Plaintiff was told that for reasons peculiaxr
4o the Administration it would be nczessary to obtain the
ganction of the Administrator before such an obligatiion could
be undertaken, If. 1t had been merely o gquestion of spending
some gum of money forthwith there would apparently not have
been the Department‘tsa practice to.refer the matter to the
" Administretor.,  The reason for referrlng the matter to the
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o Aﬁm1n¢str tor was thmt ﬁhe proposal 1nv01ved thg raymnent
= of money over some period of time in the future and for

this reason the guestion of payment for native lahour

asgumed for doepartmental purposces an importonce which
i tended to overshadow the importuance of the transaction
. .ag a whole, However when the Goverament Secretary was
approached on this matter he was given a fairly comprae-
1 hensive report (Exhibit F) which discloses fairly cnough
i the substance of the transaction and indicates thot it is
e 1nbended to implement the policy alrendy approved by the
oo Adminietrator that the Administration should be responsible
Lo for tick eradicatiocn in the Territory. The evidence shows
- that the Admindstrator read this report and gove the cosentinl
woapproval to the expenditure of money which wog involved in
2o the transaction, It is not necessary for the Plaintiff o
- establish that this memorandum would -satisfy in all respocts .
.. the Statute of Fraouds or that it was sufficient to give
.- notice to the Administrator of every detail of the agreement
«-arvived at, It is o doctrine of general application that
v where the internal marogement of an organization roquires
L7 pome parbicular means of authorisation it may be assumed
. “in the absence of any indication to the contrary that these

Cdnternal requirements have been fully met, I think that-I
‘must assume that the officers of the Administration made Lo
- theé Administrotor whabtever. reports on the ¥rarsaction might
-~ have been required by him to inform him of the true nature
woof the ftransaction, Indeced I think that the report iitscelf
- gives a clear enough indication of the substantial naturce ‘
cooof the transacticn for fthis purpose. The factg of this
= case are very close to Bardolph v N.S.W, .52 C.L.R. 455,

Hi in giving his account of the 1n£erw1ew vhich Vn

ﬂtjhlmself hod with the Administretor after the main conference

~oowith the officers of the Department of Agriculture, Hltock

. and Fisheries the Plaintiff at first stated -merely that he

7 had made a satisfactory arrangement with the Department.

s At s later stage in the trial when the significance of thig

c.oguestion of authozlty had become apparent the matter was rut

o to the Plaintiff again and he elaborated somewhat in o wny

s which would tend to show that the hdministrator was told

o rather more of the subgtance of the arrengement, I do not

Clothink that I can accept the view that the Plaintiff did per-
gonally convey to the Administrator any more than that. ho

:-had made arrangements with the Depariment for the eradication

ocof ticks which were to the uatlefacblon of both parties.

o The present case is dlfferent from Dlxon,(ﬂdnlnlrw
i tretion) v Huggins which T decided in September last year, |
1 In that case I held that the Administration was entitled to
C.orecover upon o claim in contract or gquasi-contract fees for
gervices rendered to members of the public by the Department
ooof Health, ~ I took the view thal the power of the Adminig-
odrator under the Administration Contracts Ordinsnce woas not
o power that could be delegated to officers of the Adminls-
tration becouse the Ordinsnce required that in emeh case the
Adminigtrator himself should apply his mind to the guestion
of whether the proposed contract was in the public intoerests.
Phis ordinance was subsequently amended to enable delegation |
“%o toke place but the smendment does not affect the case ot
present before me, I held that the powsr to make controcts
which was excrcised in Huggins case did not reach the officoers
of the Health Dopartment by -process of delegation from tha
S Administrator but that there was an implied authority to be
L derived from the scheme set out in the Health Ordinance. The
T mame consideration is nod spplicablé to Mr, Leshy since thore
P wong ot the time in gquestion no corresponding legialation
. setting out the functions of the Departuent of Agriculture,
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‘Stock and Fisheries therefore as far as I can sco the only
‘way in which Mr., Leahy can show authority to moke his con-
“tract ie Lo ostablish that the Administrator himsclf gave
“his assent or that the power to contraet cenferred on the
Adminigtrator under the Administration Contracts Ordinonce
_does not abolish a wider power in the Admindstrator to
enter into contracts and to delegate thot power to be
derived Trom the provisions of the Papun and Mew Guinen |

coo het of 1949-1954. I did not find it necessary to decide

in Huggins case whether such a power cxisted or whethner
it could be delegated and I do not think that it is ncccssary
- to0 decide the point in the present case. I think that the
fants of this case are very close to those in Bardolph v

Hew South Woles 52 C.L.R. 455 and I think that since the -
Administrator himgelfl expressly assented to the trangaction
submitted t¢ him there is no need to determine the limits of
“his power to delegate. Apdrt from the question of exproess
authorization by the Administrator I think that there are
Tacts from which authority should bo inferred. The Plaintiff
relies upon ratification and I think the correspondcnce '
tonds bto show that over a long period of time the Adminia-
tration adopted the view that what had been done by the
Department was done on beholf of the Adminigtration in the

. _implementation of the Administration's policy..

The next substantial question for consideration is
whether there was a breoach of the contract om the part of
the Administration., - I think that on the evidence thore
ig no doubt that there was a substantial brceaoch. In fact
for a period of almost a year the stock inspectors criployed
by the Administration to carry out the Tick eradication’
campaign neglected their dutics to such an extent that the
degree of tick infestation rose o levels never eXxpericncoed
before in the Plaintiff's herd. This neglect does not
apply to all the officers of the Department of Agriculture,
Stock and Fisheries, Some of the inspectors and velerinory
officers who visited the property on odd occaslons corvied
out their work so efficiently thot temporarily at least
substantial improvement wes noticeable ih the condition of
the cattle and the Plaintiff himscelf in spite of his highly
critical frame of mind was more than satisfied with thelr .
work, These officers howover only visited the property on
o few occasions, The substontial conduct of the campaipgn
wad left to the care of two officers each of whom was

- regponsible for these duties for periods of some months and
each of whom failed dismally in -his task, The first ot
these was described by the Flaintiff as o dypsomaniac ond
ag o man who was incompetent and unreliable; Mr, Loshy
gove one or two-ingtances of callous ill~treatment of cottle
by this inspector which would indicate s disregard Tor the
well~being of the animals and. described him as being con-
stantly under the influence of drihk. These assertions of
the Plaintiff were not substantially challenged by the
Defendants and it may well be that becauwse-the officer is vow
deceased and unable to answer these charges the Administration
is at a disedvantege on the gquestion. Mr, Dwysr wag
speclfically asked whether the ingpector was a dypsomaniac
and, showing a yroper reluctance to speak ill of the deand,
Mr. Dwyer conbtented himself with saying that there was no
compulsion to drink and that the inspector had hald gevere
wartime experiences and was a "sick man', e odronk & falr
iggue” but Mr. Dwyer could not say what was the cemuse of
nis illness. Tho Plaintiff sald that on the occasion of a
vigit by Mr. Dwyer to the property he complaincd in’very.
strong torms obout this stock inspector and asked that ho
be removed from his property. - Mr. Dwyer's recollection
of the details is not good but he -does recall that the
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Plointiffd did mako a complaint on that oceasion atout the
gstock inspector, in fact hic sald that both partics com-
" plained to him, I think that there 19 no doubt’on the
evidence that this stock inspector's work was choaracterized
by inefficiency, freguent failures fo appear on the
property to carry out his duties and such an addiction to
drink that he was unfit to be placed in ohargo of such a
campal g,

The other stock ingpector who was in charge of

the eradication for a substantinl period was o very young
man who like hig predecessor was stationed at the FHHLH{
Botel o Tew mileg from the Zdanag property to which he .
travelled to perform his duties on three doys in coach woeok,
T do not know under what pressurcsa this young mon was
labouring during the first few months of his posting to
Mumeng but it is plain from the evidence that he found the
reqdy gyailabiliity of drink too much -for his powers of

iastanca, Ag the Christmas season QpprOdvhed he became
more and more addicted to drink, morc inclined to do his
work bhadly and to leave his work unfinished. - On moany occas-
fons he did not appear at all or appeared in such.-a condition
that he was unfit %o caryry oub his dutivs. Eorly in 1955
he hod . to: undergo a minor eye cperation for a corpeal ulcer.
wut the evidence failed fto Jjustify his rather prolonged
nbgence Trom work, Later belweon March and May he was absont
from his duties fLor o continuous period of gix wecks during
whlch no spraying was carried out at all,

: I do not want to be unduly critical of this

of ficer's performance since in May as o result of the
plaintiff's outspoken eriticisms Mr. Marley was sent to the
property and put the whole campaign on a proper fooling for
the first time. Thercafter the stock inspector carricd out
hig dutics in an exemplory fashion and {the compaien
ultimately succeedod as o rosult of his application to duLy.
The inppcetor was called as o witnegs in these prococdings
and on his own record had.to sulait $o0 a crosgs~examination
which few witnesses have to ondura. He faced o series of i
meet gearching quostionu and answered them with complnie
candour and on his perfoxm¢nce in the witness box I would
hope that the sorry chapler in his carocr to which I have.
roferred and which was due %0 caupcs unknown to me s now .
forever .closged, However the cvidence established upon the
erosg-examination of this witness shows all too clearly the
‘extent %o which the Deparitment's officer fa 1led to obsorve
any reagonable standard of care in the supervision of tho
tick eradicalion. :

‘Some attempts were made by the Defendants to show
that all the fault was not - on on¢ side and thot the' Plaintiff
“himgelf was guilty of breaches of obligatlons on hig port, :
The pleaded allegatidns that the Plaintlff was at feull becausc
he feiled o keop his sprayed cattle on tick-free pastures
gcanhoet be sustoinced on the expert evidence and dg without
Foundatibn, hoving regord to the Toet that his ontire property
wos tick infested and ovorstocked, and he was not allowsed to
move his cattle to Balune,

The Plﬁintlff has given a aatlsfaotorj account of
hig performance of his bargoin and I am left with the
impression that hig evidence was substontially unshaken in
crogg—-examination, There moy have been some incidentnl
delays and on o few occaslons .the stoek inspeetor may have
been kept waiting for short perlods for water or for cheek |
counting of musherod atock, However thoese are nercly
trivial incidents and on boih sides thore were occasionnl
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delays which in the circumstances wore only to be expecthed..
. On many occasions the cattle were mustered but the lnspec-
S bor failed to arrive and on some occasionsa he arrived
woowithout any messege having beon recelved to indiceie what
“+ his movements would be, In these elrcumstances a good
o denl of hostility doveloped between the Plaintiff's dniryman
- who was in charge of the mustoring and the stock inspector
iwith the result thot they were hardly on speaking terms,
T4 was a matter of substantial detriment to the cattle %o
be kept yarded in o small enclosure on days when tho stock
inspector failed to arrive and on some occasions whon he o
‘arrived upnexpectedly the dairyman did not have the cattle
yarded bubt usually hed them clode at hand so that they could
be got in without much delay. I think that there is no ‘
Justification for any finding thet the Plaintiff failed fo
carry out his part of the bargein.

“The Defendants also endeavoured o show that the
. breaches if they existed were due to matters beyond the

. control of the Administration and gave instonces of adversc
.+ weather and break-down of machinery in support. of this, ’
o However it appears from the evidence that it was scldom that
- the weather interfered with spraying for any substrntial ’
.o part of. the day and the overall cffect :ofr the weather on the
- campeign must hove been insignificant, I think that the

because the machinery was to be provided by the Administrotion
and it would be part of the duty of the Administretion to see
“that whatever sparc parts and repl"cenonto might be neecded
werg available, After the poriod of six weeks previously
referrcd to during which no spraying'took place 1t appenrs
that some spray cquipment hod deteriornted $o such n stnge
that it wos unworkable, Various sparc parts had to be
obtained and appsrently the inspector had 4o send requisitions
for the reguirced parts through his Department which involved
delay. In spite of this mechanical frouble it appears that
one set of spray equipment could ensily have been mode
serviceable and the Plaintiff had a gqualified mechanic ahis
rroperty who was always avallable to the stock inspector for
that purpose, Later when Mr. Morley, the chief of the
Divieion of Animol Husbendry, wes sent to the property.to
stralghten the motter out means werc spéedily found for
‘replacing the defective equipment, I think that it is clear
from the evidence that the fnilure of the cempaign up to the
middle of 1955 was not due to any shortcoming on the part of
Ahe Plaintiff or his employees bul was duce £0 the negleet of
Fhoe two stock inspectors,

o The next issue for determination is whbthcr thu
;f.breachos of the agrcement gave rise to any loss or domage on
“‘the part of the Flaintiff, . There are two aspects of this
queation, The first may bo disposcd of shortly. I think
thet 1t is woll established on the evidence that the Plointiff's
cattle deteriorated in condition as a result of the inercased
infestotion of ticks and that the Plaintiff was hampered in
the egtablishment of his beef herd at the Baiune property
‘be¢auge he could not get permission to move his catile on 3o
clean pastures until fhe tick ersdication campaign hod -
succeeded to such-an exbtent thot batches of cottle could be
pronounced "clean', The result wes that he had to koep

his entire herd of 400 odd cattle on his property consisting.
of five hundred acres of rough country which led to. severc
overstocking of his pastures. The evidence does not enadble
me to nmeess this loss with any precision and T think that
‘the Plaintiff is entitled to nominal damages under this
_headlnv which I would fix at the sum of £100, Therc was a

. Defendapts can derive no comfort from break-down of nmachinery, -
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time whon the Plaintiff's loss stood o% a much higher value,
but the partics coptinued to treat the controgt ns sub~ . :
gigting., . By the end of the poriod of frceatment the cattle
had time to recover condition and the-incidentol ldsses
which may have been realized during the period nre not
astablished by the evidence,

The.other question involved in this issuc has
appeared to me to be much more difficult, .

In May 1955 during the period of six wocks

neglect by the stock inspector the Plaintiff had mrde urgent
representations to the Administrator. On the 3rd April 19r5 ;
the Plaintiff wrote to the Government Secretory a long letter
(Exhibit A 9) in which he sets out the substonce of his
gomplainta, The matter was referred to the Administrator

who rcquested the Ploaintiff to come o Port Moresby for
discussions, The Plaintiff carne to Port Moresby on the 21st
April and decisions werc arrived at designed to pince the
_whole question of tick eradication on a proper and efficient
footing. It was nlso agreed that a dip sheuld be instnlled
but in the course of further discussions with his advigsors

the Administrator decided agoinst the instollation of a

dip and subject %o this deporture the Administrator's letter
of the 30th april 1955 (Exhibit 4 11) sets out the arrange-
ments made, Mr., Marley is mentioned in this letter and it

is cleor that he recelved specific instructions to go to-the
property and put Things right. -He went to the property on
the 2nd Moy 1955 and his report thercon deted L0th May 1955

ia Bxhibit A 16, Having heard Mr., Marley's cv1dence I

think that his rcport sets out a compromise view of what he i
found when he arrived at the property. He soid that thore i
werce faults on both sides and it is hoticcable from the
notations endorscd on letters from the Departmental file
which became exhiblts in the procecdings that the officers
spont o good deal of thelr energy trying to demonstrate to-
their own satisfaction that it was the Plaintiff who wag
really af fauvlt in relation to a wide ronge of motters,

I think that the Department would be wise to koep comments

0F this kind off thelr original papers becnuse once one
recalises the background of -the disputée many of  these comments.
lose whatever force they might otherwise have and show a
determivtation in theilr authors to convinee tliemselves thot
they are right rather than an appllcatlon to the task bcfcrb
them,

' Mr, Morley's report was not recéived by the Flaintif
until some time after Mr, Marléey's visit and in his letfcer of
the 17th June 1955 (Exhibit A 17) the Plaintiff refutes some |
of the passages. of Mr., Marley's report and shows at least ‘
by his reference to paragraph 13 of that report that he weons
to carry out the arrangement as.agreed and not to interfere

in any woy in the campaign, to aveldd lending colour to ony
suggestion that fallure might be attributed to some foult on
his paxt, I prefer Mr, Leahi's version of whot occurred in
May and whether or not Mr, Marley used the precise exprcesions’
attributed to him in his references fto the stock inspector

1 am satisficd that the Plaintiff's account ig substantially
accurate and that it was as a result of SOme very forthvirht
remarks and oxplicit instructions given by Mr, Marley thot

the stock inspeetor was provailed upon thercalfter to earry

out his dutleu properly, .

After the canpalgn had been put 1nto oporation undex
the directicns of Mr, Maorley the tick population declincd
fairly rapidly and within o month the infestation of cattle
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‘wos Light, -However during the month of June sevgral benots
died and towards the cend of June the nuwaber of deiths o
appearcd siguificant, On the 20tk Junc 1955 (Exhibit & 20)
the Plaintiff radioced to the Department in Port Morosby
asking for veterinary assistance. Thercafier a secries of
felegramg were sent (Exhibits A 21 to A 25) indicoting
that the Plaintiff was alarmed ot the increasing number of
deaths in his herd and showing that at firet he held the

- view that they were due to the presence of polgonound Ve
his stoek pastures, and thot later the tentative diognosioc
of red-water fever, commonly lxown .ag Yiick fever", was put
forward and finally confirmed by ¥the Department on the 1ldth
July, This confirmation of the diagnosis wag made as o
result of laboratory tegts of blood samplea taken from cattle
by, veterinary officers of the Depariment. From June to
October the deaths continued to take a heavy toll of the
Plaintifflae ecattle until romedial treatment administercd
by the veterinary officers checked the deaths and the
successful conduct of the tick eradication campailgn removed
the risk of further infection of animals, -

a

in

The casence of -this dssue is whether the outbreak
of red-water feover was causcd by the $icks which ought to
‘have been climineted from the herd long before May 1955 butb
which in faet at that fime were ‘Anfesting the cattle more .
héavily than ever before. In support-of his contoenticn i
that the red-water fever was duc to the heavy infestation ] :
- of ticks the Flaintiff relied upon the evidence of Mr,Moundew,

o veboerinary specialist from Queensland. WMr. Maunder ic o ;
veterinacy surgeon, a graduate of the Sydney University in
vetoerinary science and has served in the Quecnsland Deport-
ment of Agrienlture and Stock for seventeon yoors. i
beeame Chicf Inspector of Stock and Dircctor of Veterinory
Services and had between one hundred and one hundred and fen
astock inspectors under his control, One of hig most
important Ffunetions in tho course of his departmental duties
was in relation to -the eradication and control of ticku, In
1951 Mr. Maunder left the department and went into private
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rreedice 2nd has worked gince thed Lice as velorizary oor-
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T0,G00 head of cabtle, fle Lo undoubtedly an oxport with

- outytanding experience of tick erandication and control, I
will hawve to deal with Mr. Maunder's evidence in greater
detall in o moment but I should pause fo0 remark that it iz
quite ¢bviocus that Mr. Meunder relies very heavily upon actunl
-obgservations in the fleld ond field experience in'arriving at
-ony conclugion. Moreover in identifying disenscs of entile
he regords the case history of the hérd ond information ns to

2o local conditions as of paramount importonce. © The conclusions |

i which would he supported by Mr. Mounder's evidence give rioe

s be the ddfficulty that, they cannot be fully accounted for by

“theoretical knowledge or reasoning .and several portinent

guestions must if his approach.to the problem is adopted,

therefore be left unanswered, His approach receives soie

general suppert from the evidence of ¥r., hnderson who woo )

called on bLehalf of the Admindsfrafion snd who qualified some

of his views by saying that in dealing with live organismo

one cannot predict future courses of events with any degree

of certainty from purely theoretical considerations,
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} In contrnet with the case on this issue presuntod
"by the Pleintiff the Administration reliled on the evidenco of
experts which would tend to support the opposite conceluulon
for theoretical reasons, One of the wmost exocting tasks
vhich I have been ealled upon to perform in this ecase hos boen
“to decide whother the evidence bascd on practicnl obscrvation
and expericnce affords me more or less guldanco towards the
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golution of this isoue Thon the ceansiderntions bisel on
Fheory, I mast Leordn mind alwoys- that the onus ig upon
“the Plointif{f{ to e Lub}Juﬂ th~t the diseasc whieh enused the
death of his cattle was due o the ticks, If T emnot
“find that this was go upon the balance of probabilities the
Plointiff ragst foll in this part of his claim,

B _ ‘During the coursce of the trinl I asked o fow
questiens to try to ageertain just how far thceory on.the
Gsubject could go in affording o conclusive answer to th,
~various guestions which emerge and my general imzrosezuh
“was that the theorobichdl understanding of the problonm ot
Jeoasd in the Territory leaves moany vital questions. unanswoerad,
and that greater welght ought to be placed upon the cetunl
“ohaervations in the field of qualificd and u"ILTlClC&” ALY,
“That this 19 also the position in relotion to the Gisunss in
“Queensland is indicated by the meothods practised thure by
Mr. Maunder, ‘ ; '
: Some matters relating to the incidence of red-watoer
“fover were not in dispute. It appears that the digcase is
cdue to an organism which follows o reghlar life cycle prrt
~of which takces place within the body of some andmal of the
QOvino family, and the remainder within the body of the
‘parasitic ficks habitunlly infesting several btypes of animals
including cattle., &% birth and for somo short timeg thoerealicer
S calves have o natural immunity to this organism bub after
" this-prelilinery immunity hos passed offy c attlc,ahlch syl
snfested with ticks bearing the discasc (referred te ns
"pathogenie” ticks) may have the red- w,tcr fever org ﬂnisw
- dntroduced into their blood streams wherc the orgenilsns tend
'to migretc towards certain organs, nobably the splaen, :
establighineg colonico and cauning wubstantiol destrucbive
changes in the subatance of those organs, Thoe orghnizsng
miltiply within the bodies of the infected cenpttle eommonly
causing euéch a break-down of the organic ftissuss uhﬂt tihe
urine of the mnimnls becomes . noticenlly st-ined with blo-l
giving the disengse 1ts common nome of red-wator fever.,”  The
disesse in ita ocute stages gives rise to synptoms of Tover
and 15 very commnonly fatal,

fn arocas vhore pathogonic $icke arc comnan youns
calves soch after birth are invariably LMfOCLUd with the
disease before their naturcl immunity Aisappears and as o
result of reopested infections the animals tend to develod
a resistance to the discase which ie termed by the. exporis
Yo pro-manity", Thig is not strictly a true immunity but
rather a doveiopud regiotonoee duc to previous contned wilh
the dlscase itself, Provided that thoe individunl aninnl ig
Lfreguently ﬂpunfactod viith the disense it will usunlly rotain
thig form of resistonce throughout ite Life bub if over ouy
considerable period theore are no pathogonic ticks proesont
“and the animal i not reinfected -its reslgiance fto the disenso
is readily logst. Therdafber such an animal may xeach thg
cgane condition ng on onimal which hasg never boeen of pa,c o
the dic-orac, Such animals are exhraordinqrjly wgecptible
to the discase and if thoey oncountor po thogvnic tl“ku Tl
usual rosult is oo violent outbrenk of the discose usunlly
with fatnl results, ‘ ‘

~ Cottle suffering from thoe discaso have cons 11cv“h10
auantitics of dhe discase orgonisms in- their bodies "uw LJ
thotr dlood stroom but .pp"rcnbly the distribubtion of -
organisns is by no meons uniform. Thexe appears to hr 1,
tendency Tfor the orgmmisms uO he destroyed in the bleood nirenn
"and somctines they do nol reach the cxtromitices of the
cireulatory. syabom rcfarrcd lo by Lho uxpcrt ng "the p(]l]hwr”!
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blood siream’ although at the same time they may be present

n large gquontities in the blood which is pomsing throusgh

he major blood vessels, It also appears that the '

orgoniems invade the blood gtream from the :ourqae of thelr

developmont in waves b I was unable o Cind-out fror bhe
cxperts whether this was due to the production of new
gencrations of organisms occurring at regulor intoervaln

:and secking ocutlet from the host animnl to the ticks or

whether 1t was a sporadic appsarance of numbers of orgnnismng

due Lo causes which could not bo established, At nll ovenis
it appears that those organisns which nre destined to loove:
the hody of the snimal to complefe their lifc cycle within

“the bodies of ticks de so by migrobting into the periplicral

blood gtream from which they arv ingested by ticks which have

“in the meantime fastened themselves on to the cattle, Afbed

‘o period of a fortnight or so the ticks, which by this tipe

‘have become greatly enlarged and heavily ergorged with blood,

fall Lo the pround where they lay cggs. - Thege eggs contnin

dhe red-water fever organism and upon hatching andl going

Cthrough two scparate juvenile stages emerge as mature ticks

“capable of fastening themselves on to other animals, Tha

“oticks lle dn walt in some convenient place in the grass and

fasben themselves on to the cattle usually whon thHey are ot
rest, - After the “ticks have commenced to drowy, blood from

~ the animal the diseasc.orpanigns within the ticks® bodics

2% bocome established within the 'salivary glands of the ticks

. from whichthoy goain access do the bleod stream of the st

s animal, ' o . '

o To summarize very briefly the effeet of Hr, Mounder's

- experience ~ it -appears that in country wherc poathogenic ticks

“are prevalont there is gonerally no great preblem crising:

- from red~water fever because the. cattle maintoin their rosic—
tance To the discase and the deaths from the digeasc aw: quite
infrequent, However the ticks during their two juvenile stnges
of developmont have the capacity to hibernatce and during long
periods of adverse weather conditions, for oxample during

- periods of dyought, the ticks remain dormant on the ground
for periods of +Hime long cnough %o causc the cattle to lace
their resietance o the disease, - Under some conditiocns an |
enormous number ol dormant tieks may accumulato on the ground,
When such climatic conditions .come Lo -an end and are succcodoed
by raintand spells of mild weather the ticks emerge from their
dormant gtate and attoack the cattle in very large humbers. As
5 result of their reduced resistaonce and the very large munber
of ticks which attack the cattle at one time there is inver-
“iably a very severe oubbreak of the discasce with o very hirh
.ineidence of mortality. Similar severo outbroaks of the
disease cecour in marginal cowmtry, i.é, cdountry whaere for
some periods the tick population is high or the populotion of
pathogenic ticks ig substantial and at other perinds oving fo
factors such ags movement of cattle and varying wewther con-
ditions ‘the tick. population may cither disawpear or he sul-
stantinlly reduced for long periods of time.. If "elson"
or non-resigtant cattle from digscase free areoas cucounber
the digease o very gevere outbresk of tle dicease may ho
expected to manifest itself,

: Based upen these practical cobmervabtion. n oyater
of reasonably effective tick control hag bhewn ¢rolved in

_Queensland and elscwhere and the main elements of this syostun

“are that tick populations should be kept at o Lo level tu
prevent any sudden build-up due to climatic ox ovher Joctors
end that at the end of any periods of Qdormaney the cabttle
should be actually infected with the disease by injection »f
pathogenie blood samples under controlled conditicns wlvich
ennble the cattic to beo treated with the approprinte druss
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- throughout the course of the discase This coursg of
“treatment renows the ‘animal's .resis 11nCG and 1v01dq the
© high death rate which w0u2d occur amongst cattle hgcmmlng
o dnfected with. the disease haphazardly by ticks cutside the

0 dmmediate control of tr11n0d personnel,

' My, Maunéer said that the outbxe%h of disense

gould be confldcntly predicted when certiin cnndltlonﬁ were
observed in the f£iqld, The essential condition was that
there should be a sudden build-up of the tick population
infesting the cattle and that this woas invariadbly followcd by
an outbreak of the diwecase after an intorval of pgroxlnﬁtoly
four weeks and that the scverity of the outbrcﬂk would depend
entirely upon the resistonce of the -animals in question. He
is convinced from observation that one or two pathogenic
ticks are oxtromely unlikely to be able to infect an animal -
with ‘the discasc ond that disgeascd cattle are invariebly
infested with subsiantial numbers of ticks.. Ho thinks that
the very small number of organisms that would bve released by
a single tick would mosi probahly fail to survive in thg Llood
gtream for long enough to csbablish the diseancg,

Wr. Mounder was given details of what occurred ot
. the Plaintiff's property and described those cvents as “o.
elassic example® of what he had encountered throughout his
experience in Qucensland. During the =aix wecks pericd vhen
neo spraying took place and the very substantial Pbuild up"
of ticks occurred the tick population was so heovy that the
-beasts werc rubbing themselves and crushing the bloed orgorged
ticks to such an exfent that "screw flics" wore attocking the!
canimals and the ticks and the wounds caumed by them werc
becoming. infested with maggots. .~ The screw fly is a
particularly wviclous form of fly in the Territory, the m“gpﬂts
© of which having gained access to the flesh of an animal will
burrow into and devour living tissues, Mr, Mownder soid
that this stato of affairs established bheyond any. question .
that the tick population hid reached such o proportion thnt
“#he pathogenic ticks must have becomt very numerous, and. that
the outbreak of red-water fover which oubuoquontly occurTLd
coincided pr001sely with his expermenoe

Tho axperts called by the Admlnistrntion soupht to
demonstrate by roference to quite inconclusive tests that
therc hed never been any red-water fever elther at Zenag; or ot
Wau from where the ficks came; and they put forwerd the viow

that since all of the Plaintiff's cattle came from discnno fros

areas of New South Wales. there must of necesgity have beew

a sovere oubtbhreak of red-water fever -as soon ag bthese cutble
come into contact with the disease. Bineg this did not
occur in 1948 or ol any other time up to 1955. during which
the cattle werd exposed to substontial quantitico of bicks

1t mast follow that tho ticks on the properdy were not pntho-
genlo and fthat tho disease must hove beon introduced from some
other gource. On a bagis of theoretical reesoning and on
gome significant circumstential cvidence I was invited to
come to the condlusion thet the Plaintiff himsclf or somcbody
on his behalf purposely introduced the disease anonﬁqt hia
own cattle in order o develop resistaonce to the digseasc and
to ercate a situation which could be nsed to support his _
reguest to the Administretion that he be allowed to dmport
further stock’ from tick infested ‘arcas of Queenslend. It

ig not essontial to the defonce that I should confirmatively
- resch such a conmclusion, it would be sufficicnt to defeat the
Plaintiff's claim if.it oppeared that the discase was intro-
duced from some unknown source provided alwoys that it did aod
appenr that tho discasc wos disseninated throughout the- herd
by the ticks which the stock inspectors ought by now to hove

33




w2 e -

climinated, Hovertheless the opinion which was formed Ny
the officerg of the Department that Mi, TLeahy ox somebody
on-his behalf_lnocu1ated his cattle is based on ciycum—
7dntial covidence which calis for closg exsminntion. Perhops
he most gignificant thing is that on the L4th Toy 195% the
Plaintiff wrote fo the Department o letbter which is BExhibit
218 in which he showed a substantial financiel interest in
heang -allowed to import cattle from Queengland. He also
'howed a clear understanding of the conmiderctions involved
nd particularly of the faet that it would be very dangorous .
o import Queensland cattle on to his tick infested property
unless his diseasc frec cattle already thero could first he i
dven effective resistance to the disease, He thoreforc nsks T
~that his own cattle be incculated. to dcvclop their resistwnce

cand, reforring to the failure to rid the property of ticlg,
‘reveals that he greatly fears an oubbreak of red-woater fover,

ia subject which had not bécn recently canvassed in corruu-
pondence with the Administration, He pointedly asks whother

“in the event of an outbreak of red-water fuver the Departiient

“hed ample stocks of veteriﬁarv nmedicines to treat o major
soutbreak, The Department in its letter in reply datcﬂ 2'7th

‘May (Exhibit 4 19) refused to accede Lo this reguest Lor
dinoculation pointing to several disadvantoges and dangers

“inyolved in such a plan but made it clear that the chtr tment

Had ample stocks of medicines for the tTreatment -of raa~w~Lcr

" fever in the cvent of an outbreak in the hord. The Denort—

ment did not nnd presumably could not forbid incculation ut
strongly advised against it. weumding that the lettcr of
the 27th -May reached the Plalntlff at about the end of Hay,
2oand allownng for en-incubation periocd of saven o Tourteen
V. days which -is applicable in cases of inoculation, it .woulid be
T pogssible for the Tlointiff by inoculating his cattle” to
w.produce the oubtbreak which occeurred in June, '

Inother circumstance of some significonce is thnt

the Plaintiff himself had stocks of the appropriate medicines
~for treatment of rod-water fever and it was his own dairy .
Cmannger who first diagnosed the disease, When - this disgnosis
was tentatively accepbed by the vetorincory officers of £he
Department the Flaintiff himself supplied the oppropricte
drugs which they used untll confirmation of the dispnosis and
further stocks of the apprOprl te drugs arrived Iron_?urp
Moresbyn ' :

Another CLrOquLwnce relicd upon by the Pofendants
was that the sgtrain of red-water fever which was found o 'be
pregent in Lhe entile woos mogt widsunl in that it consinted of
o pure ghtrain of the species Argentinn wWhilst invariably -
throughout Guecnslond where Hre, Bootn’m_ abtle oripginally

cane from the digense was coused ‘by-a mixed sirain of The
gspocies Argenblnﬁ and Bigemina, There in reln ti)n"hjp hotwoon
these two species and the latter in sonme respects is o
dominating specics with o tendency to exclude the Tformoy frnw
the peripheral blood strcan. In comsequence it wog ormusd

thot if through any naﬁural cousaes o single strain were iouad :
in any infected beast that strain mual be of the specien !

Bigemina rathoer than Argentina. There ave specially culbivabeld
pure strains as well as mixed strains of both of these speeioen
avallable in Queensiand to cattle owners so thatv considerable
variation of fechnique in inoculation is qvﬂilwhlg, The

usgunl proceduru when inoculating with the pure strain io to
inoculate with Bilgemina first and whoen 2 resigstance -is lovel-
oped to this strain subssquently inoccnlate with  Argentiua thus
ensuring the development of resistonce to both strains ol
socuring the advantoge that the sceond info otlnn tonds in he
less severc. It vos orgued that such an wusunl pure strain
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of the species Argentina could only hove been obtoined for

the purposes of inoculation from specially gua 11f106 anl
equipped persons able to produce it ond that it wis gont rﬁr}
$o nature for such an infection to bo derived from ticks,

It was also argued thoat by the end. of May the fick population
had begn substantidlly reduced so-that the donger of irf‘btiwn
from ticks indicated in Mr. Mounder'!s -evidence hed alroendy
pagged and thal the outbreak occurrcd & month teo latd to

be szgtisfoetorily e¥plained upon the hypothcesis put forword
by M, Moaunder. Fhe datce of the outbreck wns howover con-
sigstent with the first inoculation toking place shortly

after the Plaintiff received the letter of the 27th Moy, ' o

amongat the portion of the Plaintiff's herd Juown as "the
bullecks and dry heifers", Although -these were annly
o lgrefords they were not the most heavily fick infested voriion
of %the herd,  The heaviest infestation had occurrcd amongat
e ‘breeding Hereford cattle which were normally dispastored
on. the ronges some distance away from the other cattle, 411
“thése points and several other motbtors. of commont such as
_the severity of the outbreok of the discase whon it dccurred
were vigorously put forward by Mr., McLoughlin as estoeblishing
~the drrésistable inference that Mr. Leahy thoOlf had
1noculated the herd .

It would not be -difficult +to suppose that o peruon
“oof Mr, Leahy's temperament would be preparced if he thougiit £it
2 to go against the advice of the Department and follow ihe
. advice of his own experts in-a motfor such as inoculatiom if
o this were all that was involved, but in this case the accugs .
. ation againgt Mr. Leéshy involves a high degrec of moral
= turpltufe because in his subseguent 1ctter and especinlly his
“ letter of the 8th July 1955 (Exhibit 3) and also in bhe yresent
- oprocecdings the Flaintiff pubs forwnrd o claim for substintinl
o eomponsation which would be obviouwsly unbenable if he hingblf
. had introduced the disecase contrary to the Departmentis sidvice,
w0 The making of sueh o cloim would amount to th@ p1a1no%t Traud,
2 The matter was put to Mr, Leahy in cross-examination and he
. angwered the motter with a dircet.denial in o monner which
2o T thought entirely worthy of beliof, The Plaintiff'e euarloyee,
2 %he dalrymen Howard, also denied that he hed had snything to dn
sowlth 4t and although I would not place the same reliznce unon
“hig evidence if it stood alone, I think that . in the ciroun—~
stances it 18 to say-the least extromely unlikely that hoe weuldd
" have faken any such course without the Plaintiff!s lunowi.dge.
Beﬁrlng in mind mony seriouvs shortcomings in the circumsirmbial
evidence relied upon by the Defendznts on this point I find
that Mr, Leahy wos nob dircetly or indirectly o party ta the
inoculation of his own cattle,

.The circunmstontial evidence on thig peint whic won
80 effectively marshalled din Mr., Meloughlin's argument c-unot
. stand up to carceful exomination, It oppears from the nolus -
~oon the correspondence filed and peorticularly those cenlorioed
con the Plaintiffias letter .of the 30%th July 1S J) (q‘ulb it 3 )
that some officer’ of the Deparimont had-by that dote 11¥,1f
made- up his mind that Mr. Deahy had some undd Lseloocd 1ui
mation as to whore the outbreak of discase hod fome from,
Mr., Marley apparcently made up his mind at guife o enrly stngu
that Mr, Lenhy hod bech responsible for the inoculation omd
this impresgion was to his nind confirmed by the fnct Phet the
Plaintiff had supplics of the roquired drugs for trottzxnu
in stock, If Mr, Marloy's viow were accurzte thr Flaintiff
could only have obtained a supply of infeeted blcod fron n
few sources in OQuecnsland vivich might have been casily trockod
down by a Iittle deteetive work if 4% wore dntended that moh
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a suggestion were o be. seriously put, .. No enquiries wérc

made in this direction. Infected blood has only o very
= hrdef "shelf life" and must be administoerced within thirty
- gix hours after being taken from o discosed animal. H*vlng

o regard.to the Plaintiff's geographical situation it would’
. be extremely difficult for him to edministor any such
;- supplies in time, If on the other hand he was thought to
< have obtained his samples from somewherc within the Territory
" there are very few herds where red-watber fever or fticks ave
2 kmown to oceur and owing to the peculiar strain of the
o disease which wag involved the Department might well hove
. Peen able 1o make tests from the few herds of catile in
the Territory which would enablo-it to base its conclusiow
o on more rcliable facts. - The significance of the foct thet

- the Plaintiff had the aoppropriate modicines in his posseseion
is greatly diminished by the fact that he was not cross~ )
= gxoamined as to the circumstences, and mere possoas:on of the
- medicines cermot signify much unless fhere is some materis)

- on which to base the inference that he obtained them for this
s particular purpose and at the particular time when he eontom-’
2 plated making use of them, I have noticed that in-the
. Schedule of correspondence which the Plaintiff attached to
" hig letter of the 30th July 1955 {Exhibit 3) there is o
- reference t0 a request having been wade by the Flaintiff ¥s

~John Hughes (whoever he may be) on the leth August 1948 Eor

“fick Ffever dope as protection against rod weter fover™,

There is endorscd on this Schedule at this point o note
"piroparv supplied fortnightly spraying fixed", I aprears
that plroparv was-in foet one of the drugs preseribed for
treatment of redewater fover and actually used when the it
break occurred,  The letter of the. 16t4h August 1948 was not
produced at the hearing and I am left in the situation thot

it would be unjust without further investigation on this point
to draw any infercnce adverse to the Plaintiff from the nere
fact that he had these drugs in his possosslon scven yoors
after thig letter was writien, I think that Mr. McLoughlin's
ergument on the subgect also derives. too much support from
matorial set out in-the Plaintiff's Lletteor of the 14th Hay

01955 which on closer examination appears %o me to be eguivocal,

The financial arrangementsg with the Plaintiff's bank which
are referred to in this letter invelved the importotion of
two t0 three hundred head of cattle and sinee the admitted
cost of dmported cattle to the Territory was approximately
£100 it is clear thot the transaction would involve the
Plaintiff in liabilities of up to £20,000 to £30, OOO. Since
- the Bank was to provide accommedation for this tra, action 1%
ig only natural to assume -that considerable ﬁl?CuSulOH had
taken blece betwcwn the Pladntiff and his Bank ag 10 the
gconomics of importing more costly cattle from New South
Wales as comparcd with much cheaper cgbtle from arcos of
Queensland one thousand miles clozer to the Territory Hnd
within reach of the Territory by smallor coastal hlp "It
is also natural to suppose that the Plaintiff (and pcrh“pJ

~the PBank Mamager aisos would have supplemented his own .

limited know?odpe of the subject by scecking the advice of
experts in Queensland on questions affceting the very sub-
stantial transaction he proposed to undertake ond looking otb
the gquestions asked in the letter of the 14th May 1955 I
would suppose that they wore the outcome of a wvery Thorourh
examination by the Plaintiff of the wvariouns clbernativesn .
gpen to him and their implications. The corogss-examination -
of the Plointiff did not coryry the investigation on this
subjeet to a stage at.which I would feel justificd in drowing
any adverse inference, :

hs for the TLst of the ﬂrgunﬂnt it seens . to bho
largely basced on the assumption that. the inoculation of the
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cattle by the pure straln of the Argentina species of red— -
wator Lever orgenism could only come about by umiatural meons
and not by means of ticks, Mr. Mounder stated that the
incubotion period in case of inoculation by blocd samplos

is from seven to fourtcon doys and sometimes longer and thot
when caused by pathogenic ticks is usually two to threc wooks
but that 1t may bhe up to six weeks, When the blood somples
taken from the Plaintiff's herd werc cxamined the culture

of Argentina organisms manifested itsclf fourteen days after
the samples were injected into a splenecteomized calf, Only
one test was mode and this period of incubation was token

as a sufficient indicstion that it was a pure strain, If
the Bigemina species had been prosent 1t would have beun .
expected to menifest itself of the expiration of seven days,
It scems to me that such a single experiment is wholly wn-
trustworthy when serious imputations against the Plointiff's
character are involved, . .

The experts called on behalf of the Defendant were
not able to inform me by what means laboratory workers wore
able to produce a pure strain of the orgonisms. Ho doubt
they are capable .of becoming extinet when exposed to cone
ditions which do not favour their continued existence but ‘
“the experts could not tell me what those conditions might be i
or -how they might be employed in the laboratory to produce :
a pure strain, Differcnt apecles of related orgonismd ncour
in different parts of the world and no field rescarch work é
has heen undertaken in the Territory which would support any . |
positive nssertion as to whether any such diseases occur here,
It 18 thought that only members-of the bovine fonmily con ‘
conastitute sultable hosts for the purpase of conmpleting the
“ life cycle of the organisms but it is not known positively ;
"whether pathogenic ticks can he transported from pldace to {
place by any other animals or birds, Mony aninals become

" . hosts to those ticks but do not transrit the disease., 1%

ig not known for certain whether the crgonisms are capable

of producing two generctions of pathogenic ticks without

the co-oporatlon of a susceptible host although it is osmued
that this is not the casc. It is known that wild deer in
the Territory carry ticks and are ﬁuacoptlble to red-wator
fever bubt the presence or ahsence of .dcer 1n the vicinity of
Zenmg is not cstoblished.

It was argued on behnlf of the Plaintiff that the
proper inference is that Mrg, -Booth's cattle which werc
imported beforc the war in a tick infested condition from '
Queonsiand corried the ved-water fever organism into the
Terrliory where it hog survived ever since, During the war
in consequence of the Japanesc invasion this herd of cattle
- was allowed to run wild in the bush ond on her return to

the Territory Mrs. Booth wag forturate to recover them, It
wos suggested that the red-water fever organism could hot
survive a long periocd in the bush whon-the cattlp hed no fixed
place of abode but this argument io surely conbrexy $0° ordiner Ty
expériencé of the habits of cattle which tend to freguent for
substential periods favoured camping and feeding places.
Moreover it is plain that the ticks suwrviwved thoir wor-time
cxperiences and there is no reason %o suppose that the discase
*did not do the seme.  However whatever unknovwn foctors nay
be eopable of producing in a laboratory.a pure strain of the
red=-water fevor-organism might well.be capable of producing
the samo resuld in an iadlated hord over a perlod of yoorg.
Some uwnknown factor may have coused one specics.of the mixed
g¥rain, osguming that in the first plate it was a mixed
gtrain, %o become extinet with the .result that the pure

strain survived and wos carried on to the Plaintiff's proporty
with the ticke which accompanied Mrs, Booth's cdttle., The
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theoretical evidence offery me very litile substontial inforw

mation as to what wowuld be the effcct. on diseasnc frec cattle

of - such a pure gtrain. I asked but could not be told whether

these organlsms occurred in different steges of wvirulence 50

that on some oceasions or under some conditions the discase

might break out in acute or epidemic form vhercos on other
occagiong oy under different civecumstonces a mildly chronice
form of the disease might occur, I dnstoncoed experience of
this kind with other diseascs but the oxperts wore unaile to.
supply any information, They could not tell me whether

long exposure to tropicel conditions in the bush might weaken

The surviving strain as well as extingulshing the other,

The whole question of the behaviour of the ticks espeeinlly

in regerd to dormancy under the climatic condlitions subsioting

in the Territory has not been investigated snd is apparcendly

-matter for conjecture, It is supposéd as o matbter of infer-
ence that theore would be no occasion for prolonged periods of
dormancy in the mid climate at Zenag but this again is con-
jecturae, The cvidence sghows thot from time to time the
Plaintiff suffered losses of cattle from various causes.

S Some of them met violent deaths but others died from eauscs
whilch were not preciscly ascertaindd, Mogt of these deaths
were attributed to snake bite sinee this ig- death adder

ccountry, or to poisonous weeds, If in 1948 the introduction
of pathogenic ticks booring o considerably wenkened strain
of pure Argenting orgonisms is assumed to have cccurred whon .
the Plaintiff had four mature cattle and four calves it seems
to me to be not improbable that this small herd dev olopsi
resistance to the disense, As tho Plaintiffts horﬂ v
augnented fresh botches of discase free catlle would on ﬁhis
hypothesis hove beon exposed to infection at a perdoed duving
which the Plaintiff was koepln« the tick population down to

"8 Low level by J?equenb spraying Divigion of thoe herd into
different proupe grazing in dlfferent areas would dntroduce
further factors which ought to be token into account. It may
be that occasional deaths from red-water feover were attributed
to snake bite or to poison weedd ond that the individual
cattle exposed to infectlon from a small population of ticks

gradually built up a resistance to the disecase without suffering

- such a violent owbbresk ag to drew attention to the:fdet thot
the disease exisicd.. It may be that.the first hcavy infoa-
“tation with ticks which occurred in the laticer hilf of 1404
wes insufficient to produce any noticeeble result and it nny
be thet in Junce 1955 the infestation of ticke rcachcd such

o degree or the discase orgonisms roached such a state of
viruleonce thet the dibease broke out for th Tiret tin
perhaps amoenget a gscction of the hexd of eolitle which had not
déveloped sufficient rosistonce, in such a viokont attock as
b0 attract special noticao, I do not say thot theso things
-actually occurred but I think that the theooroticel evidence
of fered by the Dofondants is by no meanis sallficient to
exelude poasibilitics of this kind, T thorefopre reach thoe
concelusion that Mr, Mounder's evidence based .pn more practical
‘considerations of obscrvation and oxpericnce In the ficld
affords a more reliable basis for atiribubing the oavbrenk

of fever to what he described as o sudden Puild up of ticks.
‘ot a time approximately four to =ix weeks befora the outbrenk
wasg first noticced, ' :

Mr, Mounder's viows do not enable me - say whore

the discase came From but it does in mym opindon lead to the

~eonclugilon that it wos spread through the hard by the ticha
and that in thoe present sbtete of toehnieanl 1 an'bdyu fy Lor

a8 it was revealed to me duving the trial it must nlﬂnyu o
casspmed that such & heavy infestation of ticlks will ““lrj
wiih ;t the wisk of an outbrook of red-wat.r fever, I
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therefore attrlbuLe tho death of such catﬁle és died from
red~water fever to the Defendant's breach of contpact.

- The next guestion Tor consideration is the
gquantum of damages involved, Here agein the onus is on
the Plaintiff to establish that the catile claimed for did
An fact die of red-wabter fever, - :

Af%er the .diagnogis was conf1 ‘med by the
“officers of the Departnent of Agriculture, Stock and
#isheries the cause of death was ascertained and records
were kept by Departmental officers, Frior to the ding-
nogis of the disesse other catlle of the Plaintiff had died
and consistently with the hyjothedis upon which his case i1g-
‘based he seeks Lo go back over o period of some months and

to attribute to the disease earlior deaths of caltle which
had died from causes not positively identified at the time,
This part of the claim is largely based on My, Howard's
recollection of symploms present in the cattle correswonding
to those which were subsequently identirfied as being caused
by red-water fever. Turther Mr, Howard purvnorited to hove

had some provious experience of red-water fever but this

wag liuited as far as I can see to one pogt-mortem examin-
ation conducted some wvears before. In view of the importanca
which Ir. Mounder attaches to the cage hlstorf of the herd

in identifying diseases of this kind and in distinguishing
red-water fever and other discases, I think that 1% would

be dangerous for me to apnly the case history of this herd

in retrospect on the matorlnl before me, A% the time when
these earlier deaths occurred it was thousht that they veré
due to poisonous weeds or snalke bite on 111 the ev:dcnce
available at the time, and I think that if there were no
sympboms present at the time which led to-any other co: L?Halon
it wouild be wholly unsafe for me to assume that the. deaths
were caused by red~water fever.' I camnot say whether they
were or were not, : . .

. In the result I think that the Plaintiff has a
just claim fer the capital value of the cattle that can Le
falrly regarded as having died of red-water Tever,

_ The Plaintiff goes on to ¢laim in addition verious
citems for loss of natural increase which he would have en~
joyed from these catile had they survived and also of milk
production from such of them as were included in the Plain-
tiff'e dairy herd, This c¢laim was at first made for a
pexiod of Three yesrs.afiter the loss of the cattle in quostion
and was based on the fael which is conceded that it would have
taken some time even if the Plaintiff had had “the money to
replace the cattle which he lost, . In the course of argument
it appeared that the peried of three years was not apnropriate
and the claim was left in the position that something up to
two yealrs loss of animal increase and milk production vas

" elaimed, = In giving judgment upon the demurre; prooeodlpr

I said that it appéared to me upon the face of the clain that
the Plainliff was claiming his damoges twice over, I did n
not form any conclusion on the point at that stape but I

"found it difflcult to appreciate how the Plaintiff conld at

once claim the cepital value of the animals lost end in |
addition the income which he would-haveo expectcd to derive

Irom the same enimals if they had survived for some' period
ihereafber. If such o claim could be allowed the loos of
income could go on forever when notural increase is ‘talen

into agcount, This last con51deraiLon 0. course doen not

apply in the case of wllocks, '

EEETTI




27~ -

. I appreciate That in seme claims, Toxr expmvle in
relation to demagoed motor vehicles allowance is made Lor
loge of earning power during the necessary period of repnirs
but thie is merely a convenient woy to arvive at o fair
assegament of the diminution to the value of the wvehiclae
- occasioned by the damoge, and the clodiw ¢ould not exceecd the -
value of the vehicle as it stood at the date of the accident,
The purpoge of-an award of damages in cases oi rcontract 4is -
t0 place the Plaintiff as nearly as maj¥ be procticable in
the some position as if the contract had been pProperly vei-
. foxmed, This dnvolves giving him the cash volue of any
cattle lost and he must then procecd upon the footing thot-
“he may inveot thet cash as he sees i1t to eayn its own |
rrofita, I he delnys dn bringing on action Loy compengution
the period of delay cans®h token as inereasing the amount of
his loss unless there iz o continuing cause of action, I
think thot the corxrect approach to this problem is to have
regard to the cueglblon of loss of wrofits only in this
indirect way, thaot in the Territory there was dn fact no
ready market where cattle might be bought and sold and thnt
therefore any hypothetical vendor or purchaser in the Teorri-
tory would take into account in determining his price the
trouble expense and delay involved in importing fresh catile
from Auvgtralia, Thus a dalry cow in ful- wilk production
~incthe Territory would be worth more thon the net cost of
importing a similar cow Irom Austrilia, having regord to tho
need Tor estoblishing it in the Territory ond weidting wniil
it came into production,

Phe Plaintiff szid that the Administration rofuscd
to s¢ll him catitle from its own herds to renlace those which
e had logt and that he did not try to buy them elsgwhero
Imowing that other grazicrs were bullding up their herds ond
would only be preparcd to disvose of any, of their cattle ot
a Hfancy pricel, He conceded thot he weould have. been nre-
pared to mell any of hig own cattle at any time 3f the yrice
offered had been high enough but said Fhat it would have to be
a vory "faney" price, In fixing hise claim at £100 My, Leoahy
based his Tigurcs on the cost of ipporting dalry and dthor
cows and upon the totol cash procecds which he would rdecive
from the gale of a Lully grown tullock's carcass, Thesc
figures appeared to me %o be somewhat high but they were not
challenged and I take it that they relate particularly to
conditions which prevailed in the Territery at the time in
question, Since that time importation of cattle has beon
subsidised by the Administration and the production of cattle
Jdn the Terrdtory has enabled the Administration to sell them
at substanitially lower prices by public auvction, I thinlk thaet
I muat £ix the velue for the cattle which died by assessing
“what would have becn a fair value to the Plaintiff din the
situetion in which he was at “the time when their Jdeaths
ocourred, arriving at my estimate with due regard For vhat
it would cost the Flalntiff or anybody else in a similar
position to replace the cattle in terms of -time and moncy.
Since the Plaintiff was gelling his best dbullocks in prime
condition for a total cash return of £90-£120 and since there +
ig no posaibility of natural increase or othér incidental
profits I think thot £90 por heed is all thot I can allow
ag an average value for the bullocks ond steers logt., It
must ke borne in mind that all of thesc cattle would not be’
in Ally motured or prime condiftion at the Hime of their
death and that considerable Time and {rouble would necd to
be exyended before the full benefit of the slaughtering and
sale of the beasts could be realiged. I think a higher value
should be set upon cows because their value is not limited to

-
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meot production ond they were being wsed by the Maintics
-either for brecding or in the production of milk LTor sale

in hig'deivying business., ~ As o rooult. of his losg he wos
wigble to Tulfill all the available domwmd 7o dairy produc b
but there ig nothing %o indicate that he sufiered any capival
loss of goodwill as a rosult. Acceptbing the cvidencw which
wag not challenged that it cost something Iive 2100 ner head
to import his dofiry catile from New South Viales T think that
the hypothetical vendor of o similar beast in the Territory
at that tine would oxpect o sonmovhnt higher yrice and I think
“that £130 would be roagsonable in the case of dairy and beef
brecding cows, In the absence of further doteils an to 2L
and condition of the animeles I think thot o fair overali
sverage price to allow foi heifers would be £75 and in the
cage of the osed bull £5¢, I think that the cattle whieh

I should regurd as heving died os o result of red-water fover
arc those which Qied aficr the lst Juno. Taking for this
purpose Mr. Howard's  liot (excluding two calves which died
trom other causcs} the rosult is hat . Lorty head -of cattie
arc to be allowed for ind thoir values assesscd as follovisi~

25 steers ond bulioqké at £90 per head cees £2280
11 Illawarra shorthorn cows at £130 per heoad ,. £1430
3 heifors at £75 per head PN . 225
L aged bull at £50 R - el & 50
£3955

I think that the dameges ¢loined by the Plaintiff
nave been stretched too Ffar and are unreasonable, I thigh
that the cxpenditure of £4,000 in mid-1955 on the imvoriation
of cattle from IHew South Wales would heve enablcd him to :
replace the forty head of stock logt withoud reh ‘delay and
st1ll leave him a congiderable sum of money in hand,

: I have previodsly indicated that the Plaintif? ig
entitled to £100 damages for loss of condition of hig ntock
and I thereforc conclude that he 1s entitled to demazes
amounting in all to £4,055, : . :
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